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Cecil S. Moore, CPPO, CPPB, CPSM, C.P.M., A.P.P
Director

Fulton County, GA

July 23, 2010

RE: 10RFP050310K-NH Design/Build Services for the Adamsville
Regional Health Center

Dear Proposers:

Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 4, hereby made a part of the above referenced
RFP number 10RFP050310K-NH Design/Build Services for the Adamsville Regional
Health Center

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the RFP number
10RFP050310K-NH Design/Build Services for the Adamsville Regional Health Center
referenced above remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
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10RFP050310K-NH Design/Build Services for the
Adamsville Regional Health Center

Addendum No. 4

Page Two

This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original RFP
documents as noted above

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 4

The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1)
copy of this form with the bid package to the Purchasing Department, Fulton County
Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the
RFP due date and time August 9, 2010 at 11:00 A.M.

This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 4, day of ,
2010.

Legal Name of Bidder

Signature of Authorized Representative

Title



2.1

5.

In Section 2, delete 2.11 in its entirety and insert the following:
GEORGIA UTILITY CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE

A Utility Contractor’s License is required to perform this work in accordance with
O.C.G.A. §43-14-8.2(h). Form E1: Georgia Utility License Certification in Section
5, Purchasing Forms must be completed and submitted by the
contractor/subcontractor performing the work prior to the utility contractor
beginning their portion of the work.

In Section 2, add 2.28
2.28 FULTON COUNTY PROJECT SIGN

This Project will require that a project sign be erected by the selected Contractor
within 30 days after issuance of the Notice to Proceed. The Project sign will be
no less than 4°-0” x 8’-0” and the County will require that a Project sign is placed
at each designated entrance to the project. The County will provide the
Contractor with the specifications for the signs.

In addition to the Project sign, the County may require there to be adequate
temporary signage for identifying the Project areas, offices, delivery areas, and
any other areas the Contractor deems necessary.

In Section 5, Delete Form E, Declaration of Employee-Number Categories in
its entirety

In Section 2, 2.13

The Bidder/Proposer must submit with the bid/proposal evidence of insurability
satisfactory to the County as to form and content. Failure to submit evidence of
insurability as outlined in Section 7, Insurance and Risk Management Provisions
may deem your bid/proposal non-responsive.

Replace Section 7, Insurance and Risk Management Provisions with the
attached information under that same Section and Title.

HOK Preliminary Concept documents are being provided as Attachment 1.

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION ARE
PROVIDED BELOW:

1.

Does the 6.75 million construction budget include cost for FF&E (e.g. medical
equipment, furniture, computers, printers, etc.)

Response: No, the County will procure separately



2.1

In Section 2, delete 2.11 in its entirety and insert the following:
GEORGIA UTILITY CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE

A Utility Contractor’s License is required to perform this work in accordance with
0.C.G.A. §43-14-8.2(h). Form E1: Georgia Utility License Certification in Section
5, Purchasing Forms must be completed and submitted by the
contractor/subcontractor performing the work prior to the utility contractor
beginning their portion of the work.

In Section 2, add 2.28
2.28 FULTON COUNTY PROJECT SIGN

This Project will require that a project sign be erected by the selected Contractor
within 30 days after issuance of the Notice to Proceed. The Project sign will be
no less than 4’-0” x 8’-0” and the County will require that a Project sign is placed
at each designated entrance to the project. The County will provide the
Contractor with the specifications for the signs.

In addition to the Project sign, the County may require there to be adequate
temporary signage for identifying the Project areas, offices, delivery areas, and
any other areas the Contractor deems necessary.

In Section 5, Delete Form E, Declaration of Employee-Number Categories in
its entirety

In Section 2, 2.13

The Bidder/Proposer must submit with the bid/proposal evidence of insurability
satisfactory to the County as to form and content. Failure to submit evidence of
insurability as outlined in Section 7, Insurance and Risk Management Provisions
may deem your bid/proposal non-responsive. Replace Section 7, Insurance
and Risk Management Provisions with the revised documents contained in this
Addendum.

HOK Preliminary Concept documents are being provided as drawings posted on
the County web site.

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION ARE
PROVIDED BELOW:

1.

Does the 6.75 million construction budget include cost for FF&E (e.g. medical
equipment, furniture, computers, printers, etc.)

Response: No, the County will procure separately



2. Do the forms in Section 5.2 Vol. 1 need to be completed by each prime and sub-
prime or just the prime offerer and include number of employees of the total
together.

Response:

Form A, Certification Regarding Debarment — Prime Contractor

Form B, Non-Collusion Affidavit of Bidder/Offeror — Prime Contractor

Form C, Certificate of Acceptance of RFP Requirements — Prime Contractor

Form D, Disclosure Form and Questionnaire — Prime Contractor

Form E, Delete this form in its entirety

Form F, Georgia Security and Immigration Contractor Affidavit/Agreement —
Prime Contractor

Form G, Georgia Security and Immigration Subcontractor Affidavit -
Subcontractors

3. In Vol. 2 under Technical Requirements, Section 01010 Summary of Work,
paragraph 1, mentions that the DBC shall use HOK’s Presentation as the design
basis for this project. Can we obtain a copy of this presentation or is it available
for reference prior to tending offer?

Response: See drawings posted on the County web site.

4. Is there a recent topographic survey of the site available to offerers prior to
responding to RFP? If no survey exists is it the responsibility of the DBC to have
a topographic survey completed?

Response: The Land Survey is posted under drawings on the County web site.

5. I am working with a team and my question is: can Fulton County extend the due
date for the above referenced RFP?

Response: Addendum 3 extended the due date to August 9, 2010
6. We understand that the site is zoned residential. Are plans underway to re-zone
the property? If so, when will that be accomplished? If not, has this rezoning

period been accounted for in the project completion time of 275 days?

Response: Rezoning of the property is not required. No time needs to be allowed in
the schedule for rezoning.

7. Is the City of Atlanta or Fulton County the permitting agency?

Response: Fulton County is the permitting agency and the County will expedite the
permitting process.



8.

Is the Prime required to have a Utility Contractors License per Section 2,
Instruction to Offerors, ltem 2.10 GEORGIA UTILITY CONTRACTOR’S
LICENSE?

Response: See item 1 of this addendum

9.

Is a site survey available?

Response: Yes, see response to Question 4

10.

Who is responsible for the Geotech survey?

Response: The Design/Build Contractor

11.

Is there pre-existing easement through the site?

Response: Survey should show

12.

We are being evaluated on qualifications and fee ONLY, there is no design and
we are, therefore, not pricing/bidding the actual construction of the project. It has
not been our experience to submit a bid bond with this type of proposal. Please
advise us as to whether or not this is requirement is valid and/or if this
requirement will be remove from the proposal submittal.

Response: The County is requiring a Proposal Bond.

13.

With the short preparation period, the critical information pieces and the brief
time in which to react to the responses you will provide, we would like to request
a time extension in order to be able to provide a more complete and
comprehensive proposal.

Response: Addendum 3 extended the due date to August 9, 2010

14.

Please confirm that if a Prime Contractor certifies that they will utilize a
subcontractor holding a current and valid Georgia Utility Contractors license for
all work requiring this license by the state of Georgia that the Prime Contractor
itself will not be required to hold this certification as stated in section 2.10 of the
RFP.

Response: See ltem 1 of this Addendum

15.

Will any or all of the County Taxes be waived as this work is being done on
behalf of the County?

Response: The Prime Contractor shall pay all sales, retail, occupational, service,

excise, old age benefit and unemployment compensation taxes,



16.

consumer, use and other similar taxes, as well as any other taxes or
duties on the materials, equipment, and labor for the work provided by the
Prime Contractor which are legally enacted by any municipal, county,
state or federal authority, department or agency at the time bids are
received, whether or not yet effective. The Prime Contractor shall
maintain records pertaining to such taxes as well as payment thereof and
shall make the same available to the County at all reasonable times for
inspection and copying. The Prime Contractor shall apply for any and all
tax exemptions which may be applicable and shall timely request from the
County such documents and information as may be necessary to obtain
such tax exemptions. The County shall have no liability to the Prime
Contractor for payment of any tax from which it is exempt.

Please clarify both the time for approval of the proposed design as well as the
permitting process are to be included as part of the 275 calendar day schedule
requirement. Also please state how long the County will take for each of these
activities as they are outside the Prime Contractor’s control.

Response: The project schedule is 275 calendar days. The prime contractor is to

17.

submit a proposed schedule outlining milestones. The schedule should be
based on the prime contractor's professional experience and will be
evaluated accordingly.

Per the pre-proposal meeting, please confirm it is acceptable to list to be
determined” on individual subcontractors provided the overall percentage of work
that will be subcontracted out is listed as well as which scopes of work will be
subcontracted out.

Response:
(A) For_the Design Phase - Prime contractor must complete Contract

Compliance Exhibits A thru F per directions in Section 6, as well as answer the
two questions regarding the Equal Business Opportunity Plan.

(B) Eor_the Construction Phase - Prime contractor must complete Contract
Compliance Exhibits A thru F at 60% of the Design completion stage.

18. Please provide the anticipated date the “notice to proceed” will be issued.

Response: The NTP is anticipated to be issued 30 days after award by the Board of

19.

Commissioners.

In the pre-proposal meeting it was stated that prime contractors do not have to
pre-select and submit specific subcontracting entities with the proposal. It is our
understanding that the County would like to know the scope of work which will be
undertaken with Sub-contracting entities. If this is accurate then the following



forms will not be signed by specific sub-contracting entities. Would it be
acceptable to state our intention to affirmatively use Subcontractors and that the
specific entities will be provided upon contract award? If this is not acceptable,
how would you like to see these forms addressed if specific sub-contracting
partners have not been pre-selected?

¢ Form G: Georgia Security and Immigration Subcontractor Affidavit

e Exhibit C: Schedule of Intended Subcontractor Utilization

e Exhibit D: Letter of Intent to Perform as a Subcontractor or Provide

Materials or Services
e Exhibit G: Prime Contractor/Sub-Contractor Utilization Report

Response: Form G, Georgia Security and Immigration Subcontractor Affidavit must be

20.

provided for any subcontractor prior to performing work on this project. For
all subcontractors identified in your submittal, Form G must be submitted
with the proposal.

Because this is a Design/Build project, all exhibits for the Design phase are
due upon submittal of your response. For the Construction Phase, the
Prime contractor must complete Contract Compliance Exhibits A thru F at
60% of the Design completion stage.

Exhibit G, Prime Contractor/Sub-Contractor Utilization Report is only
required by the awarded Prime Contractor.

We are chasing another Design/Build project for Fulton County (Oak Hill
Adolescent Facility) and the information we are turning in is exactly the same info
as Adamsville. We recently received confirmation from Darlene banks that now
specific subcontractor information is required because it is too early to determine
those subs. She requested we include “TBD” for the subs.

Response: “TBD” cannot be used. All exhibits for the Design phase are due upon

21.

submittal of your response. For the Construction Phase, the Prime
Contractor must complete Contract Compliance Exhibits A thru F at 60% of
Design completion state.

In the proposal criteria the new facility is a 20,000 square foot building. At the
pre-proposal meeting it was requested that the new facility be 25,000 to 30,000
SF. What is the final decision by the County for the building size. The size is
critical to develop a solid budget for the project. In accordance with the Cost
Proposal Form only the Design-Builder Fee, Architect/Engineering Fee, and the
Project General Conditions are requested. Is it not the intent of the County to
have a complete G-max proposal for the project? Hence the lower G-max
proposal for the full package receiving the full points allotted for the Cost
Proposal or is the County only evaluating the lowest Fees and General
Conditions as shown on the Cost Proposal?



Response: The building size is 28,000 square feet. The cost portion of the evaluation
will be based on the three costs that are to be submitted as outlined in the
RFP. The GMP is $6.75 million which includes the three costs mentioned
above.

22. Is the FFE (Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment) apart of the overall project
budget?

Response: See response to Question 1.

23. In Section 2 paragraph 2.10 “Georgia Utility Contractor’s License” it appears that
he General Contractor will be required to have a utility contractor’s license, s that
correct? We normally require this for our sitework subcontractors that do that
portion of the work.

Response: See item 1 of this Addendum

24.  What is the anticipated start date of the project?

Response:

25. Wil a Joint Venture lose points if one of the Joint Venture partners is not located
in Fulton County?

Response: As long as one member of the Joint-Venture partnership is located in Fulton
County you will receive maximum points for Location of Firm.

26. Does Fulton County have a definition of the items to be included in the General
Conditions?

Response: The General Conditions specifications are included in the RFP.

27. Does the duration of 275 days include design and permitting time? If so will
Fulton County expedite the review and permitting process in order to meet the
tight schedule?

Response: Yes, Yes

28. Please advise on how we can obtain a copy of the HOK’s design since this is
what the basis of design is based on.

Response: See drawings posted on the County web site.
29.  WIill Fulton County handle permitting?

Response: No, the Contractor will be responsible for all applicable permits.



30. Please advise if the cost for FF&E is included in the $6,750,000

Response: See response to Question 1.

31. Is FIFE included in the current budget for the Adamsville facility?

Response: See response to Question 1.

34. Does the county have a boundary and topographic survey of the Adamsville site?

Response: See response to Question 4.

35. Does it include existing utilities?

Response: No but the proposed Adamsville site is located in the City of Atlanta

36. Reference Sections 2.10 and 2.12 (pages 2-9 and 2-10) of the RFP. Do these
provisions apply to a Design/Build Contractor? If awarded the project, we will
subcontract to licensed utility contractors, electricians, plumbers, conditioned air
contractors, and low voltage contractors. However, because the design will not
be finalized at the time of submission, we cannot ascertain who the
subcontractors will be at this time. Please advise.

Response: See item 1 of this Addendum

40.  Will Fulton County make available to the DBCs prior to the submittal deadline a
copy of the “Adamesville Health Center 2009 Presentation by HOK” as referenced
in Volume Il, Section 01 010-Summary of Work? If so, when might the

presentation be available?

Response: See drawings posted on the County web site.



SECTION 7 (Revised)
Insurance and Risk Management Provisions
Adamsville Regional Health Center (Design-Build)

Itis Fulton County Government’s practice to obtain Certificates of Insurance from our
Contractors and Vendors. Insurance must be written by a licensed agent in a company licensed
to write insurance in the State of Georgia, with an A.M. Best rating of at least A- VI, subject to
final approval by Fulton County. Respondents shall submit with the bid/proposal evidence of
insurability satisfactory to Fulton County Government as to form and content. Either of the
following forms of evidence is acceptable:

e Aletter from an insurance carrier stating that upon your firm/company being the
successful Bidder/Respondent that a Certificate of Insurance shall be issued in
compliance with the Insurance and Risk Management Provisions outlined below.

e A Certificate of Insurance complying with the Insurance and Risk Management
Provisions outlined below (Request for Bid/Proposal number and Project Name,
Number and Description must appear on the Certificate of Insurance).

* A combination of specific policies written with an umbrella policy covering
liabilities in excess of the required limits is acceptable to achieve the applicable
insurance coverage levels.

Upon award, the Contractor/Vendor must maintain at their expense, insurance with policy limits
equal to or greater than the limits described below. Proof of insurance must be provided to
Fulton County Government prior to the start of any activities/construction as described in the bid
document(s). Any and all Insurance Coverage(s) and Bonds required under the terms and
conditions of the contract shall be maintained during the entire length of the contract, including
any extensions or renewals thereto, and until all work has been completed to the satisfaction of
Fulton County Government.

Accordingly the Respondent shall provide a certificate evidencing the following:

1. WORKERS COMPENSATION/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE - STATUTORY (In
compliance with the Georgia Workers Compensation Acts and any other State or
Federal Acts or Provisions in which jurisdiction may be granted)

2.
Employer’s Liability Insurance  BY ACCIDENT EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
Employer’s Liability Insurance  BY DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $500,000
Employer’s Liability Insurance  BY DISEASE EACH EMPLOYEE $500,000

2. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE (Including contractual Liability
Insurance)
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability Each Occurrence $1,000,000
(Other than Products/Completed Operations) General Aggregate $2,000,000
Products\Completed Operation Aggregate Limit $2,000,000

Personal and Advertising Injury Limits $1,000,000



Fire Damage Limits
$100,000

**To Include Per Project/Location Aggregate and Completed Operations for 3 Years after
final payment**



3. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE
Combined Single Limits Each Occurrence $1,000,000
(Including operation of non-owned, owned, and hired automobiles).
**Broadened Pollution Endorsement CA9948 and MCS 90**

4. UMBRELLA LIABILITY

(In excess of above noted coverages) $1,000,000
6. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY Per Claim/Aggregate  $1,000,000 /
$2,000,000

(To be provided when the Contract includes specified Professional Services, and will be
written with all Environmental/Pollution exclusions deleted).
**Completed Operations: Statute of Repose for state of GA**

7. CONTRACTORS POLLUTION LIABILITY Each Occurrence
$1,000,000
Policy is not necessary if coverage can be provided under the General Liability policy.

8. BUILDERS’ RISK:

To be written on a Builders Risk “All-risk” form that shall at least include

insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, falsework, and
materials

and equipment in transit, and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes

of loss:
fire, lightning, extended coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, earthquake,

collapse,
P debris removal, demolition occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations, water
damage
’ (other than caused by flood), and such other perils or causes of loss as may be
specifically
required by Supplementary Conditions) until Final Completion and Acceptance of the
Project.
: Such policy of insurance shall contain at least the following sub-limits of insurance and
deductibles:
Sub-limits:
Property in Transit $1,000,000
Property in Offsite Storage $1,000,000
Plans & Blueprints $25,000
Debris Removal 25% of Insured Physical Loss
Delay in Completion / Soft Cost TBD
Ordinance of Law (Increased Cost of $1,000,000
Construction)
Flood and Earthquake TBD — Full Contract Value
Deductibles:
Flood and Earthquake $25,000

Water Damage other than Flood $100,000



All other Perils $10,000



Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and any of their subcontractors,
sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, each of the other, for damages caused by fire
or other causes of loss to the extent covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to this
Section, or other property insurance applicable to the Work, accept such rights as they have
to the proceeds of such insurance.

The policy will name Fulton County, The Contractor and Subcontractors of all tiers as
Insureds under the policy.

Certificates of Insurance

Certificates shall state that the policy or policies shall not expire, be cancelled or altered without
at least sixty (60) days prior written notice to Fulton County Government. Policies and
Certificates of Insurance are to list Fulton County Government as an Additional Insured (except
for Workers® Compensation) and shall conform to all terms and conditions (including coverage
of the indemnification and hold harmless agreement) contained in the Insurance and Risk
Management Provisions. The General Liability Additional Insured language should apply to on-
going and completed-operations, using ISO form CG 2010 (11/85 version) or equivalent.

If Fulton County Government shall so request, the Respondent, Contractor or Vendor will
furnish the County for its inspection and approval such policies of insurance with all
endorsements, or confirmed specimens thereof certified by the insurance company to be true
and correct copies.

The Contractor agrees to name the Owner and all other parties required of the
Contractor/Vendor shall be included as additional insureds on the CGL, using 1SO Additional
Insured Endorsement forms CG 2010 11/85 or its equivalent coverage to the additional
insureds. This insurance for the additional insureds shall be as broad as the coverage provided
for the named insured Subcontractor. It shall apply as Primary Insurance before any other
insurance or self-insurance, including any deductible, non-contributory, and Waiver of
Subrogation provided to the Additional Insureds.

Additional Insured under the General Liability, Auto Liability, Umbrella Policies (with exception of
Workers Compensation and Professional Liability), with no Cross Suits exclusion.

Important:
It is understood that Insurance in no way Limits the Liability of the

Contractor/Vendor.

USE OF PREMISES

Contractor/Vendor shall confine its apparatus, the storage of materials and the operations of its
workers to limits/requirements indicated by law, ordinance, permits and any restrictions of
Fulton County Government and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with its
materials.




PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

Contractor/Vendor will adequately protect its own work from damage, will protect Fulton
County Government’s property from damage or loss and will take all necessary
precautions during the progress of the work to protect all persons and the property of
others from damage or loss.

Contractor/Vendor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of employees of
the work and shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal, State and local
safety laws and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about, or

adjacent to the premises where work is being performed.

Contractor/NVendor shall erect and properly maintain at all times as required by the
conditions and progress of the work, all necessary safeguards for the protection of its
employees, Fulton County Government employees and the public and shall post all
applicable signage and other warning devices t protect against potential hazards for the
work being performed.

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

To the fullest extent of the Law, Contractor/Vendor hereby agrees to release, indemnify, defend
and hold harmless Fulton County, its Commissioners, officers, employees, subcontractors,
successors, assigns and agents, from and against any and all losses (including death), claims,
damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including but not limited to all actions, proceedings, or
investigations in respect thereof and any costs of judgments, settlements, court costs, attorney’s
fees or expenses, regardless of the outcome of any such action, proceeding, or investigation),
caused by, relating to, based upon or arising out of any act or omission by Contractor/Vendor,
its directors, officers, employees, subcontractors, successors, assigns or agents, or otherwise in
connection (directly or indirectly) with its acceptance, or the performance, or nonperformance, of
its obligations under these agreements. Such obligations shall not be construed to negate,
abridge or otherwise reduce any other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise
exist as to any party or person as set forth in this paragraph.

Contractor/Vendor’s obligation to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless, as set forth
hereinabove, shall also include, but is not limited to, any matter arising out of any actual or
alleged infringement of any patent, trademark, copyright, or service mark, or other actual or
alleged unfair competition disparagement of product or service, or other tort or any type
whatsoever, or any actual or alleged violation of trade regulations.

Contractor/Vendor further agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmiess Fulton
County, its Commissioners, officers, employees, subcontractors, successors, assigns and
agents from and against any and all claims or liability for compensation under the Worker's
Compensation Act, Disability Benefits Act, or any other employee benefits act arising out of
injuries sustained by any employees of Contractor/Vendor. These indemnities shall not be
limited by reason of the listing of any insurance coverage.



If the bid/quotation involves construction services Contractor/Vendor will be
responsible fully for any and all damage to the work during the course of
construction, until the point of Final acceptance by Fulton County.

FULTON COUNTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ALL PROVISIONS OF THIS INDEMNITY
AGREEMENT MAY NOT BE APPLICABLE TO THE CONTRACTOR/VENDOR’S
BUSINESS. TO THE EXTENT THAT CONTRACTOR/VENDOR MAY DEMONSTRATE
SUCH NONAPPLICABILITY, FULTON COUNTY MAY NEGOTIATE AMENDMENTS
TO THIS AGREEMENT AS THE CIRCUMSTANCES DICTATE.

CONTRACTOR/VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ, UNDERSTANDING,
AND AGREEING TO COMPLY WITH THIS INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD
HARMLESS AGREEMENT, AND THE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE
CONTRACTOR/VENDOR IDENTIFIED BELOW IS AUTHORIZED TO SIGN
CONTRACTS ON BEHALF OF THE RESPONDING CONTRACTOR/VENDOR.

COMPANY: SIGNATURE:

NAME: TITLE:

DATE:




